
Tuskegee University began offering certificates in architecture under the Division of 
Mechanical Industries in 1893.  

 
 

 



 
Tuskegee Institute's first hospital, a 25-bed unit, was built in 
1900. An ever expanding program of patient care and nurse 
training led to the construction, in 1912, of the original John A. 
Andrew Memorial Hospital — a 65-bed unit. 
 
In 1892, Tuskegee Institute opened the first hospital for African 
Americans in Alabama, the Tuskegee Institute Hospital and 
Nurse Training School, to provide care for the school's faculty 
and students and to train black nurses. The hospital expanded 
after physician Dr. John A. Kenney was appointed director in 
1902 and began serving the surrounding African American 
community. It was renamed the John A. Andrew Memorial 
Hospital, following a donation in honor of Andrew, who was 



governor of Massachusetts, and became a center for the 
postgraduate training of black physicians in the Deep South. 
 
 
 
Tuskegee Institute's endowment had grown to over $1 .5 million by 1912 
(or over $33.3 million in 2010) 
 
 

 
 
Robert R. Moton was president of Tuskegee from 1915 to 1935. Under his 
leadership, the Tuskegee Veteran’s Administration Hospital was created on land 
donated by Tuskegee Institute. The Tuskegee V.A. Hospital , opened in 1923 
and was the first VA facility that was staffed entirely by African Americans. 
 
Following World War I, the federal government embarked on the construction of 
a number of hospitals for disabled veterans, including one for African American 
soldiers. Tuskegee Institute donated 300 acres of land for the 600-bed 
Veterans' Hospital, but as the 1923 opening date drew near, the Ku Klux Klan 
mounted protests in opposition to the hospital with more than 1,000 KKK 
members storming the streets in protest. In order to diffuse the situation, the 



Veterans' Bureau stated that the hospital would open with a staff of all-white 
nurses and doctors.  
 
The decision outraged Tuskegee Institute President Robert R. Moton, who had 
consented to the hospital with the understanding that it would be staffed—at 
least in part—by black physicians.  
 
Moton wrote U.S. president Warren G. Harding asking him to allow black 
doctors at least to have an opportunity to qualify for staff positions at the 
hospital, and the NAACP campaigned to expose the hypocrisy of 
segregationists' demands that white doctors and nurses minister to black 
veterans. As a result of these protests, in November 1923 four black physicians 
began work at the Tuskegee Veterans' Hospital, despite continued threats by 
the Klan. Opposition eventually dissipated and, by the end of 1924, black 
physicians quietly gained control of the facility under the direction of Joseph 
Ward.  
 
 
Tuskegee VA Hospital's history began following Worl d War I, when the Treasury 
Department Hospitalization Committee found that it w as almost impossible to secure 
proper treatment for Negro soldiers in mixed hospit als for war veterans in the South. 

Congress authorized the U.S. Treasury to build a hos pital solely for the care of more 
than 300,000 black veterans in the South. The hospi tal, which was constructed at a 
cost of $2,500,000, featured 27 permanent buildings  on a total of 464 acres of land 
adjoining the Tuskegee Normal and Industrial Instit ute campus. 

The dedication ceremony of the Tuskegee VA Hospital , which was then known as the 
Hospital for Sick and Injured Colored World War Vet erans occurred on February 12, 
1923. The institution was passed, in authority, fro m the U.S. Treasury to the U.S. 
Veterans Bureau (which later became the Veterans Ad ministration on July 21, 1930).  
The hospital was transformed when, in 1954, VA hosp itals were desegregated and 
many Tuskegee managers were transferred to work at other VA facilities across the 
country. 

 

 

 

 



Tuskegee Institute Carnegie Library 
The Carnegie Library was built in 1901 with a gift of $20, 000 from Andrew 
Carnegie. It was the official library at Tuskegee until 1932. From 1932-1969 it 
was the home of the Music Department.  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Hampton Institute’s Collis P. Huntington Memorial L ibrary  

 
 

 
 

In 1903 the Collis P. Huntington Memorial Library w as built and dedicated and served 
as the main Hampton library until 1992. The Hunting ton building was renovated and is 
now the home of the Hampton University Museum and A rchives. 
 
 



Tuskegee 1920-1921 

 
 
Tuskegee Institute began offering a program in mana gement education in 
1925. 
 
Tuskegee Institute added a college curriculum in 19 27, shifting from an 
institution offering essentially vocational educati on to one providing 
baccalaureate and graduate instruction. 



Hollis Burke Frissell Library 
 
1932 Hollis Burke Frissell Library was built replacing the Carnegie Library. 
 

 
 



 



Tuskegee Airmen 
The United States military selected Tuskegee Institute to train pilots because of its commitment to 
aeronautical training. Tuskegee had the facilities, and engineering and technical instructors, as well as a 
climate for year round flying. The first Civilian Pilot Training Program students completed  their 
instruction in May 1940. The Tuskegee program was then expanded and became the center for African-
American aviation during World War II. Tuskegee Institute built an airport. 
 
 

1944 Tuskegee Institute began graduate instruction in Agriculture, 
Chemistry and Education. 
 
 

1945 Tuskegee Institute began a school of veterinar y medicine.  
 
1947 the first graduate degree, Master of Science, was awarded May 19 in 
the following areas: Agriculture, Education and Hom e Economics. 
 
1948 Tuskegee Institute initiated an electrical eng ineering.  
 
1950 The Graduate Faculty was established. This bod y promoted and 
maintained the academic and general welfare of the faculty and graduate 
students. 

 
 
Tuskegee Institute began a school of nursing in 195 3. 
Dr. Lillian Holland Harvey, Virginia was a graduate of Lincoln Hospital's Nursing School in Durham, NC 
(1939), and received a bachelor's degree from Columbia University in 1944, a master's degree in 1948, 
and a doctorate in 1966. Dr. Harvey arrived at Tuskegee in 1944 and would become the first dean of the 
School of Nursing at Tuskegee Institute. During her tenure as dean (1948-1973), Harvey successfully 
managed the transition from a diploma program to the first baccalaureate nursing program i n the state 
of Alabama. Harvey was instrumental in advancing opportunities for African American nurses to enter 
the Amy Nurse Corps during World War II by maintaining a program at Tuskegee that prepared Black 
nurses for military service. Tuskegee began offering the baccalaureate program in 1949. 
 
The nursing program also holds the distinction of being one of the oldest baccalaureate pr ograms at an 
HBCU in continuous operation in the nation today. 
 
The Tuskegee Institute Training School of Nurses was registered with the State Board of Nursing  in 
Alabama in September 1892 under the auspices of the John A. Andrew Memorial Hospital. The 
establishment of a diploma program for nurses at Tuskegee Institute in 1908. 



 
 
 
 
 
Tuskegee Institute added a mechanical engineering c urriculum 1955.  
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 



1957 the 4-year curriculum in architecture leading to the Bachelor of 
Science degree was initiated.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1958 Paul Rudolph completed the Master Plan for Tus kegee Institute   
Tuskegee, AL   
 
 
 
 
1960 Paul Rudolph designed the Interdenominational Chapel for Tuskegee 
Institute 
 
 
 
 











 
 

 

1962 graduate work was organized into a comprehensiv e unit for 
administration and coordination under a Dean of Gra duate Programs. 

 
 
 
Tuskegee Institute began offering nuclear engineeri ng 1963, became a full 
program in 1968 
 
 
 
Basil O’Connor Hall  
In 1965, the United States Bureau of Health Resources Development donated a grant of $427,000 that 
enabled Tuskegee University to erect Basil O’Connor Hall 
 
 
 
 



Tuskegee Institute began offering the professional 6-year masters degree 
program in 1965.  

 
 

 
Luther H. Foster Hall 
College of Engineering 
1971 The engineering building, which was completed in 1971, to provide facilities for expansion of 
research.  
 

Tuskegee Institute’s endowment was $18 million the second highest 
among the endowments of historically black colleges  (equal to 
$96,913,000 in 2010). 
 
Kresge Center 
1960 Paul Rudolph designed the Administration Building for Tuskegee Institute (Kresge Center)  
Tuskegee, AL  completed in 1976 
 



Master Plan Revision and design of new Campus Entra nce-Plaza-
Pantheon-Gardens  
1978 Paul Rudolph completed the Master Plan Revision and design of new Campus Entrance-Plaza-
Pantheon-Gardens for Tuskegee Institute. 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 



Dr. Andrew F. Brimmer joined the Tuskegee Institute  Board of Trustees in 
1965 as the first African American member of the bo ard. 
 
 
 
 

 



 



 
 



 



 



 



Tuskegee Institute established a major in Chemical Engineering in 1977. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Frederick Douglas Patterson Hall 
Dedicated in 1980 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Tuskegee Institute’s endowment was $14.9 million in 1981(or $35,742,000 in 
2010) 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 



 



 



 



 





 
 



Auburn University  
(Fall Enrollment 2010) 
African American 1,978 
Total Enrollment 25,078 
 
(Fall Enrollment 2000) 
African American 1,493 
Total Enrollment 21,860 
 
(Fall Enrollment 1990) 
African American 847 
Total Enrollment 21,537 
 
(Fall Enrollment 1980) 
African American 484 
Total Enrollment 18,603 
 
(Fall Enrollment 1976) 
African American 390 
Total Enrollment 17,523 
 
University of Alabama 
(Fall Enrollment 2010) 
African American 3,761 
Total Enrollment 30,232 
 
(Fall Enrollment 2000) 
African American 2,222 (undergraduate) 
Total Enrollment 19,318 
 
 



 
 
Hampton University’s endowment was $55 million in 1985 



 



 



 



 



 
 
 



 
Thrasher Hall 
Completely remodeled for expansion in 1983, from three to four floors, the building was converted to  an 
office building to house the Department of Curriculum and Instruction, which is now housed  in the 
Bioethics building. 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Milbank Hall 
Renovate and upgrade Milbank Hall for research  
 
Upgrade the Vocation Building as an Extension Activity Center  
 

 



 



In 1987 the era of black hospitals in Alabama ended  with the closure of 
Tuskegee University's century-old John A. Andrew Ho spital, the last black 
hospital in the state.  
 
The South's all-black hospitals were a casualty of the new integrated hospital facilities 
that developed in the decades following the Hill-Bu rton Act. As almost none of the 
older all-black hospitals qualified for federal fun ding, their days were numbered.   
Along with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, a major in centive for southern hospitals to 
integrate was the passage of Medicare legislation i n 1965. In order to qualify for 
Medicare funding, hospitals were required to abide by the Civil Rights Act, which 
prohibited the federal government from funding any institution that discriminated on 
the basis of race, creed, or national origin. Tuske gee’s hospital was fully integrated. 
The difficulty was said to be the cost to run the h ospital due to the high rate of 
unreimbursed indigent care. Dr. Andrew F. Brimmer s upported the historic decision to 
close John A. Andrews Hospital. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Campbell Hall 
Farm Mechanization Building from 1955-1991. A 1988 renovation made the center section of the 
building 3 stories high.  The building serves today as home for the College of Agricultural, Environmental and 
Natural Sciences (CAENS). 

 



 
Tuskegee University’s endowment was $37.3 million in 1991(or $59,716 in 
2010) 
Tuskegee’s endowment was $14.9 million in 1981(or $22,325,400 in 1991 or 
$35,742,000 in 2010) 



Hampton University’s  William R. and Norma B. Harvey Library  

 
 

 
 

The $10 million, 125,000 Sq. Ft. William R. and Nor ma B. Harvey Library was dedicated 
on January 26, 1992.  By the 1980s it was clear Col lis P. Huntington Memorial Library 
was inadequate for providing state-of-the-art libra ry and information services.  The 
architects responsible for the design of the Willia m R. and Norma B. Harvey Library, 
Hubert Taylor (now deceased) and William Milligan, both graduated from Hampton 
University.   



 
 
 

Hampton University School of Engineering 
 

 



Kellogg Hotel and Conference Center 
 
In 1994, Tuskegee University received funding from the Kellogg Foundation to build the Kellogg Hotel and 
Conference Center, one of only 14 such centers throughout the US and the UK and the only one located on a 
historically African American college campus. Kellogg sponsored $12 million of the $17 million needed to 
build the facility.   
 

 
 

Largest endowments 1995 
Howard University              $144,300,000 
Spelman College                $133,551,000 
Hampton University           $97,441,000  
Morehouse College            $67,056,000 
Tuskegee University          $42,534,000 
Meharry Medical College   $33,680,000 
Dillard University                $32,885,000 
Xavier University                $20,720,000 
 



 
August 27, 1996  
 

First Union Capital Markets Corp.  
Underwrites Bond Issue For Tuskegee University 
  
PRNewswire 
 
TUSKEGEE, Ala.-- Tuskegee University, one of the nation's oldest predominately black universities, will 
build a new student housing complex and make other facility improvements with a $30 million bond  
issue underwritten by First Union Capital Markets Corp.  
     
The tax-exempt bonds, issued through the Private Colleges and Universities Facilities Authority in Alabama, will 
fund a 504-bed housing complex and pay for the renovation of several buildings, including th e 
university's library and power plant . First Union Capital Markets Corp. is the investment banking subsidiary of 
Charlotte, N.C.-based First Union Corp. (NYSE: FTU), the nation's sixth-largest bank holding company. 
     
First Union Capital Markets Corp. also underwrote $10 million in taxable bonds that will reimburse 
Tuskegee for money it spent on the Kellogg Conference Center, an on-campus academic/business 
center and hotel that opened in 1994 . 
 
 "Tuskegee University is pleased to work with First Union to build a student residential facility and make other 
infrastructure improvements that will support the education of generations of promising young men and women," 
said Dr. Benjamin F. Payton, president of Tuskegee University. 
     
"These improvements will enhance the academic and residential environment at Tuskegee and complete an 
integral part of the university's strategic plan," said Billy R. Owens, chief financial officer and vice president of 
Tuskegee University. 
     
Tuskegee University, founded in 1881 by educator Booker T. Washington, has an enrollment of approximately 
3,200 students. It is the only privately controlled, yet state-supported school in Alabama. 
     
"The proceeds of this bond issue will allow Tuskegee University to make much needed infrastructure 
improvements which, in turn, will allow Tuskegee to continue to compete for the country's best and brightest 
students," said Kevin R. Hanna, a vice president in First Union Public Finance Group's Atlanta office.  "This is 
another example of how First Union's commitment to the public finance business can help clients such as 
Tuskegee University meet their financial needs and improve the communities in which they are located." 
     
First Union Public Finance Group, a division of First Union Capital Markets Corp., has grown its business 
significantly over the past two years. 
 
So far this year, First Union has served as senior manager or co-manager on $2.7 billion of negotiated bond 
issues, up from $1.6 billion in 1995. 
     
First Union Capital Markets Corp. offers a broad range of products and services to corporate customers 
including public finance, loan syndications, private placements, merger and acquisition advisory, as well as 
investment grade and high-yield debt origination, trading and distribution. 
    
First Union Corp. provides financial products and services to 12 million retail and corporate customers 
nationwide. First Union, with assets of approximately $140 billion as of June 30, 1996, operates financial centers 
in 12 Eastern states, as well as in Washington, D.C. 
 

 



 



Morrison Mayberry Hall 
Upgrade gutters and repair Morrison Mayberry Hall for extension activity. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
2001 

 
Ford Motor Company Library/Learning Resource Center  
 
The Ford Motor Company Library/Learning Resource Center was the result of the completion of a $4.5 million 
renovation to the Hollis Burke Frissell Library facility. The renovated library was dedicated in March 2001.   

The Pepsico Tennis Courts were completed in 2001   
 
 
 

Abbott Stadium  
Construction of weight and training facility at Abbott Stadium, 2001  
 
New playing surface and sprinkler system installed at Abbott Stadium, 2002  
 
New aluminum seating, 600 crimson and gold stadium style seats, and Pepsi Cola  scoreboard added to 
Abbott Stadium, 1991 . 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Old Margaret Murray Washington Hall  
 
In 2002 KHAFRA was to perform interior and exterior renovations to the Margaret Murray-Washington Hall 
Interior renovations encompassed classrooms, faculty offices and other support-type spaces, while exterior 
renovations included roof replacement, window replacement, brick veneer restoration, porch restoration, lighting 
and a parking lot.  
 
 



Hampton University Student Center 
 
The student center, built in 2002, is a state of th e art 125,000 square foot building that 
houses: Student Activities, Dean of Men, Dean of Wo men, Student Government 
Offices, Student Class Officers Offices, Freshmen S tudies Office, The Script 
(University Newspaper), Yearbook Office, Student Fi tness Center, Billiard Game Room, 
Television Room , Student Center Theater, Grand Bal lroom, Bowling Alley, Aerobics 
Room, Cyber Lounge, Student Lounge, Meeting Room, P irate Grill and Eateries, Pirate 
Cove and Pirate Place Shop. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

Tuskegee University National Center for Bioethics i n Research and Health 
Care 
 
 
In 2003 the federal government awarded a $14 million grant to Tuskegee University to complete its National 
Center for Bioethics in Research and Health Care. 
 
The center had already received federal grants and private funding totaling $16 million, including multi-million 
dollar donations from the Ford Motor Co., the United Negro College Fund and the Lilly Foundation. Since 1998, 
Tuskegee had received $10 million in federal funds earmarked to cover operating expenses of the center. 
 

 
2003 Tuskegee University graduated its first class of Ph.D.s in Materials 
Science and Engineering.  
 
 
 

White Hall  
 
White Hall restoration contractor Centex Rooney Construction Co. 
 
 

Williams-Bowie Hall 
Williams-Bowie Hall was dedicated in 2002. Formally called the Food Animal Production, 
Research and Service Center 
 
 



Willcox Hall “C”  
 
By Jim Ladesich 
Peter Li Education Group 
http://www.peterli.com/cpm/resources/articles/archive.php?article_id=385  
 
 
Willcox Hall “C”, a campus landmark at Tuskegee University, gained renewed life and a new mission 
following a $2-million reconstruction project . The building is part of a five-building complex where students 
of a bygone era learned construction trades and other vocational skills. The legacy seems appropriate for a 
building that now serves as the School of Architecture. Those training for the profession can see firsthand how 
the 70-year-old building was stripped to its brick shell and steel trusses before conversion to modern standards 
by the design/build team of A.G. Dre-Co, Inc., Tuskegee, and Stansell & Associates, in Montgomery, Ala.  
 
The 14,300-sq.-ft. building is one of two structures that were originally scheduled for extensive rehab projects 
until a budget shortfall deferred improvements to the second building. The scope of work underwent even further 
change when administrators scrapped plans to add a second floor within Willcox C because the structure’s 17-ft. 
clearance between existing concrete slab and steel roof trusses would not accept the modification. Instead, the 
structure was completely gutted before receiving new interiors; new mechanical, electrical, plumbing and life-
safety systems; a window replacement; exterior masonry restoration; and a Colonial Red standing seam metal 
roof system with a 7:12-in. pitch. 
 
The 16-in., solid brick walls were repaired where necessary and fully repointed during the building’s exterior 
facelift. This coincided with replacing the existing windows with aluminum, 1/2-in. insulating units. Formidable, 
eight-ft.-deep steel trusses, ductwork and decking were left exposed in the three architectural studios created 
within the short legs of the H-shaped footprint. 
 
In recent years, Tuskegee administrators have adopted Colonial Red as an architectural standard for the 
increasing use of standing seam metal roof systems (SSMRs) on campus facilities.  Specifications for the 
Willcox C roof also required a UL Class 90 Wind Uplift rating and 70-percent Kynar base for factory-applied 
color coating. 
 
RCI Contractors & Engineers, Inc., based in Tuscaloosa, Ala., was awarded the subcontract for the 
reroofing portion of the project.  Butler Manufacturing supplied both the slope build up/roof support system 
and the 24-gauge VSR architectural standing seam metal roof system. The building was altered to a hip-roof 
profile that cantilevers four ft. over the building’s brick. A two-ft.-high soffit, clad with the same red metal panels, 
and a color-coated custom gutter were also fabricated from Butler material. The complete assembly imposed a 
roof load of only four lbs. psf on the structure, well within the range of what the building would accept. Because 
VSR was developed to serve both as an architectural and structural standing seam metal roof system, it was 
applied over five-ft. purlin spacings without an underlying solid substrate. 
 
The reconstructed building subdivides into 12 offices, conference area, a model shop, storage area and offices 
for student chapters of the American Institute of Architects and a general contracting association. 
 



Donald Stansell 
Case No. 2003-001559 
 
The Florida Board of Architecture and Interior Design announces that on October 30, 2003, a final order  
was entered suspending Donald Stansell, Montgomery, Alabama, from the practice of architecture in the 
State of Florida . 
 
Mr. Stansell, a Florida licensed architect, signed seven Architect’s Certificate of Payments without 
visiting the construction site for a project with the Faith Missionary Baptist Church of Gainesville, 
Florida Inc. Due to Mr. Stansell’s failure to inspect the construction site, numerous constructio n errors 
occurred that could have been corrected. 
 
After reviewing the evidence, the Board suspended Mr. Stansell from the practice of architecture in the State of 
Florida for 2 years, and imposed a fine of $2,000.00. The Board is charged with enforcing the laws and rules 
regarding the practice of architecture and interior design, and to protect the health, safety and welfare of 
Florida's citizens. 
2004 
 

Legacy Walkway 
 
Legacy Walkway was dedication on March 28, 2004. 
 
Centex Rooney Construction Co. was the contractor for Legacy Walkway. 
 
Homecoming 2003 proved to be a fine time for the Nov. 8 Legacy Walkway unveiling. 
More than 1,500 brick purchases exceeds the amount needed to earn the Bush Foundation’s dollar-for-dollar 
$500,000 match. 
 

 
 

 
 



Brailsford & Dunlavey  
  

Tuskegee University 
Student Housing Feasibility Analysis 
Tuskegee, Alabama  
  
http://www.facilityplanners.com/ht/d/ContentDetails/i/10858/pid/357 
  
In August 2004, Tuskegee University engaged Brailsford & Dunlavey to evaluate the demand for on-
campus housing and to provide recommendations for developing facilities to meet this demand.  B&D's 
scope of work included a detailed market analysis involving campus tours, stakeholder interviews, a survey of 
the local off-campus housing market, an analysis of housing facilities and costs at comparable institutions, a 
series of focus group interviews with students, a student Internet survey, projection of demand for on-campus 
housing, and a detailed financial analysis of the proposed development.  
  
B&D recommended the development of a 300- to 450-bed project that would open in the fall of  2008, 
including a mix of suite single bedrooms and suite double bedrooms. This recommendation t ook into 
consideration The University's desire to avoid occupancy risk by recommending new housing 
construction of less than 100% of student demand.  In the long term, B&D's recommendation considered the 
University's recruitment goals, presenting a housing option that would be marketable to upcoming sophomores 
by providing an incentive to live in traditional-style accommodations during freshman year. 
  
In order to promote a student-focused environment that would enhance campus community and promote the 
University's academic aspirations, the recommended project incorporated 2,600 square feet of community 
space (i.e. TV lounge / game rooms, study lounges, and floor kitchens). B&D also recommended the 
construction of a living-learning center (i.e. classrooms, computer labs, group study rooms, and faculty advisor / 
academic support offices) in a second phase or concurrent development. 
  
As a result of B&D's efforts, the University decided to move forward with the $17.8 million housing 
project.  

 
 
 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention funds $1 0 million 
National Center for Bioethics in Research and Healt h Care 
 
In 2004 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention funded $10 million cooperative agreement to continue work 
at Tuskegee University National Center for Bioethics in Research and Health Care. 
 

 
 
 
 

2005 Tuskegee University launched a second Ph.D. pr ogram in Integrative 
Biosciences. 
 
 
 

Capital improvement project 
The capital improvement project, at a cost in excess of $45 million, includes renovations on Collis P. Huntington 
Hall, Ellen C. James Hall, Warren G. Logan Hall, Margaret Murray Washington Hall and Wilcox A. There have 
also been internal improvements made in Lewis Adams and Olivia Davidson residential halls - notably the 
replacement of heating and cooling systems. 



Andrew F. Brimmer College of Business and Informati on Science 
 
The new Andrew F. Brimmer College of Business and Information Sciences was dedicated on the 
campus of Tuskegee University on October 19, 2007.  
 
Architect for the project was Hogan-Campis. 
  
Turner Universal, which has offices in Huntsville, Ala., and Nashville, Tenn., was the contractor for the 
$15 million project and donated $14,000 to the University's general fund. Turner also awarded a $6,380 
scholarship to Tuskegee University senior Keisha Richardson, an architecture and construction science 
major from Baltimore. 
 
 
General Contractor Rabren General Contractors, Inc. (Auburn alumnus)  
C&C Masonry and Masonry Arts, Inc. 
 
Archon Brimmer contributed $1.7 million of his own money toward the project, which cost an estimated  
$14.5 million. 
 
In 2004 SouthTrust Corporation gave a $500,000 contribution to be used in constructing the center for business 
and information science. At that time about $4 million had been raised for the project. 
 
In 2005 Tuskegee University just received a gift of $1 million from 3M Corporation. This gift moved the project 
forward with only a little more than $3 million short of of project goal. The University was awarded $500,000 per 
year in 2006 and 2007. 
 
In 2006 Tuskegee University received a $1 million gift from the Praxair Foundation for the construction of the 
College of Business and Information Science. 
 
In 2006 Tuskegee University received the first installment of a $100,000 donation from First Tuskegee Bank to 
go toward construction of the Andrew F. Brimmer College of Business and Information Science building. The 
second installment of $50,000 was given to the University in 2007. 
 
Tuskegee University received $1 Million from the Ford Motor Fund and $2 million from Procter & Gamble. 
 
Other contributors included Alabama Power, ALFA Insurance, Arthur Vining Davis, Stephen Canter, Oliver Carr, 
Emrett Groomes, Liberty Corp, Richard D. Morrison, Herman J. Russell, Vaughan Nelson Investment 
Management, and Felker W. Ward. Also, the legislature and the Governor of the State of Alabama approved a 
$4 million award towards the building.  
 



Largest HBCU endowments 2007   
Howard University $523,690,000 
Spelman College $340,261,000 
Hampton University $257,000,000 
Morehouse College $150,000,000 
Tuskegee University $102,000,000 
Meharry Medical College  $78,421,000   
The Morehouse School of Medicine $56,400,000 
Bethune-Cookman University $42,900,000 
 
 
Largest HBCU endowments 2008  
Howard University $497,680,000 
Spelman College $351,706,000 
Hampton University $235,872,000 
Florida A&M University $115,101,000 
Morehouse College $110,000,000 
Meharry Medical College $77,955,000 
The Morehouse School of Medicine $60,352,000 
 
Morehouse College, saw its endowment take a $40 mil lion hit in 2009. 
 
Largest HBCU endowments 2010  
Howard University $399,678,000 
Spelman College $295,220,000 
Hampton University $212,712,000 
Florida A&M University $96,154,000 
Meharry Medical College $90,659,000 
Tuskegee University $86,117,000 
 
 
New Margaret Murray Washington Hall dedicated in 20 10 
The new 25,000-square-foot facility will provide state-of-the-art accommodations for t he Office of 
Admissions and Enrollment Management, new university gift shop and university bookstore an d 
additional dining services. 
Architect/ Electrical Engineer - Rosser International, Inc. of Atlanta, GA 
Program Manager - Hoar Program Management of Birmingham, AL 
General Contractor - Van Winkle Geneal Contractors 
Auburn Electrical Construction co., Inc. Contract Amount - $435,095 
 
 



Benjamin F. Payton Hall 
 
Architect of record, Williams Blackstock Architects of Birmingham 
 
Thirteen architectural firms responded to requests for qualifications.  
Six were selected for presentation of proposals, followed by interviews.  
 
In addition to Williams Blackstock, Tuskegee University is partnering with five African-American architectural 
firms, mostly Tuskegee University alumni, to complete the massive project. 
 
The Tuskegee University Board of Trustees approved the $20-million complex, which will replace the former 
Collis P. Huntington building that was destroyed by fire in August 1991. The state-of-the-art living and learning 
center will feature 500 suite-style units, classrooms, labs, and study and gathering areas that will integrate the 
residential and academic components of the University for freshman and sophomore students. Construction is 
slated to be complete by spring 2011. 
 

 
 
 

Dr. Andrew F. Brimmer on Oct. 15, 2010 announced hi s retirement as Chairman of the 
Tuskegee University Board of Trustees. 
 
 
Wednesday, December 15, 2010  
 

Hoar Program Management awarded Tuskegee contract 
Tuskegee University has awarded Hoar Program Management (HPM) a capital projects contract to 
manage new construction and renovations to university facilities. HPM previously worked with 
Tuskegee on projects at Margaret Murray Washington Hall and Logan Hall. 
 
Lauren B. Cooper 
Birmingham Business Journal  
 
Hoar Program Management, a division of general contractor Hoar Construction, said it la nded a capital 
projects contract on the campus of Tuskegee University. 
 
The company was awarded the contract to oversee numerous design and construction projects for 
projects in program and design development stages and projects currently under constructio n, said a 
news release. 
 
Projects will span over the next two years and include new construction, renovations, structural and 
roof repairs, building facade and water intrusion issues, system upgrades and code compliance for the 
Americans with Disabilities Act.  “We have launched a new era and are striving for a pathway to pre-
eminence for Tuskegee University,” said Gilbert L. Rochon, president of Tuskegee University. 
 
 



Tuskegee University offers  
Master of Science degrees in: 
Agricultural and Resource Economics 
Animal and Poultry Sciences 
Biology 
Chemistry 
Electrical Engineering 
Environmental Sciences 
Food and Nutritional Sciences 
Mechanical Engineering 
Plant and Soil Sciences 
Tropical and Animal Health 
Veterinary Science 
 
Doctor of Philosophy degrees in: 
Integrative Biosciences 
Materials Science and Engineering 
 
 
Hampton University offers 14 master’s degree progra ms, and the doctoral 
or professional degree in nursing (Ph.D.), physics (Ph.D.), atmospheric an 
planetary sciences (Ph.D.), physical therapy (DPT),  and pharmacy 
(Pharm.D.). Hampton is the first historically black  college or university to 
offer the Ph.D. in nursing. 


